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1 The Regulations are currently codified in the 
Code of Federal Regulations at 15 CFR parts 730– 
774 (2009). The violations occurred in 2004 and 
2005. The Regulations governing the violation at 
issue are found in the 2004 and 2005 versions of 
the Code of Federal Regulations (15 CFR parts 730– 
774 (2004–2005)). The 2009 Regulations establish 
the procedures that apply to this matter. 

2 50 U.S.C. app. § 240 1–2420 (2000). Since 
August 21, 2001, the Act has been in lapse and the 
President, through Executive Order 13222 of August 
17, 2001 (3 CFR 2001 Comp. p. 783 (2002)), which 
has been extended by successive Presidential 
Notices, the most recent being that of August 13, 
2009 (74 FR 41.325 (Aug. 14, 2009)), has continued 
the Regulations in effect under the International 
Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701, 
et seq.) (IEEPA’’). 

3 31 CFR part 560. 

reviewer’s ability to participate in 
subsequent administrative review or 
judicial review. 

Comments received in response to 
this solicitation, including names and 
addresses of those who comment, will 
be part of the public record for this 
proposed action. Comments submitted 
anonymously will be accepted and 
considered; however, anonymous 
comments will not provide the 
respondent with standing to participate 
in subsequent administrative review or 
judicial review. 

Reviewers may wish to refer to the 
Council on Environmental Quality 
regulations for implementing the 
procedural provisions of the National 
Environmental Policy Act at 40 CFR 
1503.3 in addressing these points. 

Responsible Official 

The Forest Supervisor of the Kootenai 
National Forest, 31374 U.S. Highway 2, 
Libby, MT 59923, is the Responsible 
Official for this project. The Record of 
Decision will identify the land 
management activities to be 
implemented in the project area 
including urban interface fuels 
treatments, vegetation management, 
watershed rehabilitation activities, 
wildlife habitat improvement, access 
management changes, including road 
decommissioning, monitoring, and 
whether or not a Forest Plan 
amendment is necessary. The Forest 
Supervisor will make a decision on this 
project after considering comments and 
responses, environmental consequences 
discussed in the Final SEIS, and 
applicable laws, regulations and 
policies. The decision and supporting 
reasons will be documented in a Record 
of Decision. 

Dated: March 24, 2010. 
Paul Bradford, 
Forest Supervisor, Kootenai National Forest. 
[FR Doc. 2010–7486 Filed 4–1–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 3410–11–P 

COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS 

Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting 
of the Nebraska Advisory Committee 

Notice is hereby given, pursuant to 
the provisions of the rules and 
regulations of the U.S. Commission on 
Civil Rights (Commission), and the 
Federal Advisory Committee Act 
(FACA), that a planning meeting of the 
Nebraska Advisory Committee to the 
Commission will convene by conference 
call at 2 p.m. and adjourn at 
approximately 3 p.m. on Thursday, 
April 22, 2010. The purpose of this 

meeting is to continue planning civil 
rights projects. 

This meeting is available to the public 
through the following toll-free call-in 
number: (866) 364–7584, conference call 
access code number 65896860. Any 
interested member of the public may 
call this number and listen to the 
meeting. Callers can expect to incur 
charges for calls they initiate over 
wireless lines, and the Commission will 
not refund any incurred charges. Callers 
will incur no charge for calls they 
initiate over land-line connections to 
the toll-free telephone number. Persons 
with hearing impairments may also 
follow the proceedings by first calling 
the Federal Relay Service at 1–800–977– 
8339 and providing the Service with the 
conference call number and contact 
name Farella E. Robinson. 

To ensure that the Commission 
secures an appropriate number of lines 
for the public, persons are asked to 
register by contacting Corrine Sanders of 
the Central Regional Office and TTY/ 
TDD telephone number, by 4 p.m. on 
April 19, 2010. 

Members of the public are entitled to 
submit written comments. The 
comments must be received in the 
regional office by May 3, 2010. The 
address is U.S. Commission on Civil 
Rights, 400 State Avenue, Suite 908, 
Kansas City, Kansas 66101. Comments 
may be e-mailed to 
frobinson@usccr.gov. Records generated 
by this meeting may be inspected and 
reproduced at the Central Regional 
Office, as they become available, both 
before and after the meeting. Persons 
interested in the work of this advisory 
committee are advised to go to the 
Commission’s Web site, http:// 
www.usccr.gov, or to contact the Central 
Regional Office at the above e-mail or 
street address. 

The meeting will be conducted 
pursuant to the provisions of the rules 
and regulations of the Commission and 
FACA. 

Dated in Washington, DC, March 29, 2010. 
Peter Minarik, 
Acting Chief, Regional Programs 
Coordination Unit. 
[FR Doc. 2010–7406 Filed 4–1–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6335–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Bureau of Industry and Security 

Action Affecting Export Privileges; 
Aqua-Loop Cooling Towers, Co. 

In the Matter of: 09–BIS–006, Aqua- 
Loop Cooling Towers, Co., P.O. Box 966, 

Folsom, CA 95763, and 116 Hopper 
Lane, Folsom, CA 95630, Respondent. 

Order Relating to Aqua-Loop Cooling 
Towers, Co. 

The Bureau of Industry and Security, 
U.S. Department of Commerce (‘‘BIS’’), 
initiated this administrative proceeding 
against Aqua-Loop Cooling Towers, Co. 
(‘‘Aqua-Loop’’) pursuant to section 766.3 
of the Export Administration 
Regulations (the ‘‘Regulations’’),1 and 
section 13(c) of the Export 
Administration Act of 1979, as amended 
(the ‘‘Act’’),2 through the issuance and 
tiling of a charging letter as to Aqua- 
Loop that alleges that Aqua-Loop has 
committed five violations of the 
Regulations (‘‘Charging Letter’’). 
Specifically, these charges are: 

Charge 1: 15 CFR 764.2(d)—Conspiracy 
to Export Items From the United States 
to Iran Without the Required Licenses 

Beginning at least in or about June 
2004, and continuing through at least in 
or about April 2005, Aqua-Loop 
conspired or acted in concert with 
others, known and unknown, to violate 
the Regulations or to bring about an act 
that constitutes a violation of the 
Regulations. The purpose of the 
conspiracy was to export items subject 
to the Regulations from the United 
States to Iran, via the United Arab 
Emirates (‘‘U.A.E.’’), without the 
required U.S. Government 
authorization. Pursuant to section 746.7 
of the Regulations, no person may 
engage in the exportation of an item 
subject to both the Regulations and the 
Iranian Transactions Regulations 
(‘‘ITR’’),3 without authorization from the 
U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Office 
of Foreign Assets Control (‘‘OFAC’’). 
Pursuant to section 560.204 of the ITR, 
an export to a third country intended for 
transshipment to Iran is a transaction 
subject to the ITR. 

In furtherance of the conspiracy, the 
conspirators, including Aqua-Loop, 
participated in a scheme to have Aqua- 
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4 EAR99 is a designation for items subject to the 
Regulations but not listed on the Commerce Control 
List. 15 CFR 734.3(c). 

Loop source or obtain the items from a 
U.S. distributor, and then to have 
AquaLoop export the items to an Iranian 
customer and co-conspirator, Parto 
Abgardan Cooling Towers Co. (‘‘Parto 
Abgardan’’), in Iran through a U.A.E. 
entity identified by Parto Abgardan. In 
furtherance of the scheme, Aqua-Loop 
obtained from Parto Abgardan 
information regarding items Parto 
Abgardan sought to have exported from 
the United States to Iran. Aqua-Loop 
then obtained such items and facilitated 
their export to Parto Abgardan in Iran. 
Pursuant to the conspiracy, various 
items were exported to Parto Abgardan 
in Iran, including the items discussed in 
Charges 2–5, below, for which no OFAC 
authorization was sought or obtained. 

In addition, the co-conspirators 
sought to bring about the export to Iran 
of other items subject to the Regulations. 
On or about December 21, 2004, Parto 
Abgardan informed Aqua-Loop that it 
had contacted a U.S. company regarding 
the purchase of a filament winding 
machine, Parto Abgardan told Aqua- 
Loop, ‘‘Since they can’t sell directly to 
Iran, they are OK with selling it 
domestically and then we can transfer it 
from U.S. to Dubai and then to Iran. 
With your permission we are going to 
give Aqua-Loop’s information to them 
so they can send you their offer’’ based 
on the technical information provided 
to the U.S. company by Parto Abgardan. 
Thereafter, on or about December 23, 
2004, Aqua-Loop’s president, writing on 
Aqua-Loop stationery, responded, that 
he would be ‘‘more than happy if I can 
be of assistance on your purchase of 
filament winding machines. Please let 
me know the detail, so I can pursue.’’ In 
furtherance of the conspiracy, Parto 
Abgardan and Aqua-Loop continued to 
work together to accomplish this 
transaction; on or about January 31, 
2005, Parto Abgardan provided Aqua- 
Loop with Parto Abgardan’s contact at 
the U.S. filament winding machine 
company, and asked that Aqua-Loop 
contact the U.S. company. On or about 
February 1, 2005, Aqua-Loop’s 
president again wrote to Parto 
Abgardan, stating that he had had a 
‘‘long conversation’’ with the U.S. 
company’s representative and that ‘‘I 
should emphasize that I found this lady 
a bit reluctant on the subject of export 
the unit to Iran. But she sound OK to 
work with us, if we do not mention any 
thing about Iran.’’ 

In so doing, Aqua-Loop committed 
one violation of section 764.2(d) of the 
Regulations. 

Charge 2: 15 CFR 764.2(b)—Causing, 
Aiding or Abetting 

Between on or about July 26, 2004, 
and on or about September 28, 2004, 
Aqua-Loop caused, aided or abetted the 
doing of an act prohibited by the 
Regulations by facilitating or 
coordinating the export of 
approximately 174 rolls of hog hair filter 
media, part number HH6O 130 and 
valued at approximately $11,687.76, 
items which are subject to the 
Regulations and designated as EAR99 
items,4 through the U.A.E. to Iran 
without the required U.S. Government 
authorization. Pursuant to section 
560.204 of the JTR maintained by 
OFAC, an export to a third country 
intended for transshipment to Iran is a 
transaction that requires OFAC 
authorization. Pursuant to section 746.7 
of the Regulations, no person may 
engage in the exportation of an item 
subject to both the Regulations and the 
hR without authorization from OFAC. 
No OFAC authorization was sought or 
obtained for the transaction described 
herein. 

Aqua-Loop took this action after 
having been asked by Parto Abgardan, 
an Iranian company, to arrange for the 
export of the items to Iran ‘‘via Dubai.’’ 
Parto Abgardan did not have a location 
in the U.A.E., and the address to which 
Aqua-Loop arranged for the items to be 
exported, ‘‘do Parto Abgardan,’’ was in 
fact added to the BIS Unverified List of 
entities involved in transactions in 
which BIS is unable to verify the 
existence or authenticity of the end-user 
or other party to the transaction, 
published in the Federal Register on 
October 19, 2006. 71 FR 61,706 (Oct. 19, 
2006). 

In so doing, Aqua-Loop committed 
one violation of section 764.2(b) of the 
Regulations. 

Charge 3: 15 CFR 764.2(e)—Acting With 
Knowledge of a Violation 

Between on or about July 26, 2004, 
and on or about September 28, 2004, 
Aqua-Loop ordered or financed items to 
be exported from the United States with 
knowledge that a violation of the 
Regulations was occurring, was about to 
occur or was intended to occur in 
connection with the items. Specifically, 
between on or about July 26, 2004, and 
on or about September 28, 2004, Aqua- 
Loop ordered or financed approximately 
174 rolls of hog hair filter media, part 
number HH60130 and valued at 
approximately $11,687.76, items which 
are subject to the Regulations and 

designated as EAR99, which Aqua-Loop 
knew would be exported to Iran via the 
U.A.E. without the required U.S. 
Government authorization. Pursuant to 
section 560.204 of the ITR, an export to 
a third country intended for 
transshipment to Iran is a transaction 
that requires OFAC authorization. 
Pursuant to section 746.7 of the 
Regulations, no person may engage in 
the exportation of an item subject to 
both the Regulations and the ITR 
without authorization from OFAC. 
Aqua-Loop knew that no OFAC 
authorization was sought or obtained for 
the transaction described herein. 

Aqua-Loop had knowledge that a 
violation was occurring, was about to 
occur or was intended to occur in 
connection with the items because 
Aqua-Loop was aware of the U.S. 
embargo of Iran and had knowledge that 
exporting items through the U.A.E. to 
Iran was a violation of U.S. law. 

Aqua-Loop’s president stated to a BIS 
Office of Export Enforcement special 
agent in an interview on or about 
October 14, 2005, that approximately 
three years earlier he had become aware 
of sanctions barring the shipment of 
items to Iran and that he understood 
that knowingly shipping items to Iran 
through a third country was illegal. 
Aqua-Loop’s president referred to this 
type of activity as ‘‘diverting’’ items to 
Iran. Moreover, on or about September 
23, 1997, AquaLoop had issued a letter 
to Parto Abgardan stating, ‘‘I am trying 
to find a way to send the components 
that I promised to you. Unfortunately 
after many unsuccessful attempts, I 
came to a conclusion that the only way 
to open this channel is what you were 
thinking, and if I understood correctly, 
you are going to have some kind of 
agent or office in one of the Gulf 
countries. I tell you this that I would 
have no problem getting a container to 
my place and loading to a steam ship 
toward Dubai.* * * Many shipping 
companies express that you shouldn’t 
have any major problem getting the 
goods to Tehran from Dubai.’’ 

In so doing, Aqua-Loop committed 
one violation of section 764.2(e) of the 
Regulations. 

Charge 4: 15 CFR 764.2(b)—Causing, 
Aiding or Abetting 

Between on or about February 9, 
2005, and on or about April 19, 2005, 
Aqua-Loop caused, aided or abetted the 
doing of an act prohibited by the 
Regulations by facilitating or 
coordinating the export of 
approximately 185 rolls of hog hair filter 
media, part number HHB6O 130 and 
valued at approximately $9,838.30, 
items which are subject to the 
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Regulations and designated as EAR99 
items, through the U.A.E. to Iran 
without the required U.S. Government 
authorization. Pursuant to section 
560.204 of the ITR maintained by 
OFAC, an export to a third country 
intended for transshipment to Iran is a 
transaction that requires OFAC 
authorization. Pursuant to section 746.7 
of the Regulations, no person may 
engage in the exportation of an item 
subject to both the Regulations and the 
ITR without authorization from OFAC. 
No OFAC authorization was sought or 
obtained for the transaction described 
herein. 

Specifically, after exporting certain 
hog hair filter media to Parto Abgardan 
in Iran, as described in Charges 2–3, 
Aqua-Loop was informed by Parto 
Abgardan that the items were not 
exactly the same as a sample Aqua- 
Loop’s president had brought to Parto 
Abgardan before the transaction 
described in Charges 2–3 occurred. 
Aqua-Loop received from Parto 
Abgardan a piece of the original sample 
as well as a piece of the items described 
in Charges 2–3. Aqua-Loop then 
provided both pieces to the U.S. 
distributor, and placed a new order for 
185 rolls of hog hair filter media, part 
number HHB6O 130, with the U.S. 
distributor. Aqua-Loop arranged for the 
U.S. distributor to supply the items, 
which were destined for Iran, to a 
freight forwarder for initial shipment to 
the U.A.E., ‘‘c/o Parto Abgardan.’’ Parto 
Abgardan did not have a location in the 
U.A.E., and the address to which Aqua- 
Loop arranged for the items to be 
exported, ‘‘do Parto Abgardan,’’ was in 
fact added to the BIS Unverified List of 
entities involved in transactions in 
which BIS is unable to verify the 
existence or authenticity of the end-user 
or other party to the transaction, 
published in the Federal Register on 
October 19, 2006. 71 FR 61,706 (Oct. 19, 
2006). 

In so doing, Aqua-Loop committed 
one violation of section 764.2(b) of the 
Regulations. 

Charge 5: 15 CFR 764.2(e)—Acting With 
Knowledge of a Violation 

Between on or about February 9, 
2005, and on or about April 19, 2005, 
Aqua-Loop ordered items to be exported 
from the United States with knowledge 
that a violation of the Regulations was 
occurring, was about to occur or was 
intended to occur in connection with 
the items. Specifically, between on or 
about February 9, 2005, and on or about 
April 19, 2005, Aqua-Loop ordered 
approximately 185 rolls of hog hair filter 
media, part number HHB6O 130 and 
valued at approximately $9,838.30, 

items which are subject to the 
Regulations and designated as EAR99, 
which Aqua-Loop knew would be 
exported to Iran via the U.A.E. without 
the required U.S. Government 
authorization. Pursuant to section 
560.204 of the ITR, an export to a third 
country intended for transshipment to 
Iran is a transaction that requires OFAC 
authorization. Pursuant to section 746.7 
of the Regulations, no person may 
engage in the exportation of an item 
subject to both the Regulations and the 
ITR without authorization from OFAC. 
Aqua-Loop knew that no OFAC 
authorization was sought or obtained for 
the transaction described herein. 

Aqua-Loop had knowledge that a 
violation was occurring, was about to 
occur or was intended to occur in 
connection with the items because 
Aqua-Loop was aware of the U.S. 
embargo of Iran and had knowledge that 
exporting items through the U.A.E. to 
Iran was a violation of U.S. law. Aqua- 
Loop’s president stated to a BIS Office 
of Export Enforcement special agent in 
an interview on or about October 14, 
2005, that approximately three years 
earlier he had become aware of 
sanctions barring the shipment of items 
to Iran and that he understood that 
knowingly shipping items to Iran 
through a third country was illegal. 
Aqua-Loop’s president referred to this 
type of activity as ‘‘diverting’’ items to 
Iran. Moreover, on or about September 
23, 1997, AquaLoop’s president had 
issued a letter to Parto Abgardan, on 
Aqua-Loop stationery, stating, ‘‘I am 
trying to find a way to send the 
components that I promised to you. 
Unfortunately after many unsuccessful 
attempts, I came to a conclusion that the 
only way to open this channel is what 
you were thinking, and if I understood 
correctly, you are going to have some 
kind of agent or office in one of the Gulf 
countries. I tell you this that I would 
have no problem getting a container to 
my place and loading to a steam ship 
toward Dubai. * * * Many shipping 
companies express that you shouldn’t 
have any major problem getting the 
goods to Tehran from Dubai.’’ 

In so doing, Aqua-Loop committed 
one violation of section 764.2(e) of the 
Regulations. 

Whereas, BIS and Aqua-Loop have 
entered into a Settlement Agreement 
pursuant to section 766.18(b) of the 
Regulations, whereby they agreed to 
settle this matter in accordance with the 
terms and conditions set forth therein; 
and 

Whereas, I have approved of the terms 
of such Settlement Agreement; it is 
therefore ordered: 

First, Aqua-Loop shall be assessed a 
civil penalty in the amount of $100,000, 
the payment of which shall be 
suspended for a period often (10) years 
from the date of this Order, and 
thereafter shall be waived, provided that 
during the period of suspension, Aqua- 
Loop has committed no violation of the 
Act, or any regulation, order, or license 
issued thereunder. 

Second, that for a period often (10) 
years from the date of this Order, Aqua- 
Loop, his representatives, assigns or 
agents (‘‘Denied Person’’) may not 
participate, directly or indirectly, in any 
way in any transaction involving any 
commodity, software or technology 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as 
‘‘item’’) exported or to be exported from 
the United States that is subject to the 
Regulations, or in any other activity 
subject to the Regulations, including, 
but not limited to: 

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using 
any license, License Exception, or 
export control document; 

B. Carrying on negotiations 
concerning, or ordering, buying, 
receiving, using, selling, delivering, 
storing, disposing of, forwarding, 
transporting, financing, or otherwise 
servicing in any way, any transaction 
involving any item exported or to be 
exported from the United States that is 
subject to the Regulations, or in any 
other activity subject to the Regulations; 
or 

C. Benefitting in any way from any 
transaction involving any item exported 
or to be exported from the United States 
that is subject to the Regulations, or in 
any other activity subject to the 
Regulations. 

Third, that no person may, directly or 
indirectly, do any of the following: 

A. Export or reexport to or on behalf 
of the Denied Person any item subject to 
the Regulations; 

B. Take any action that facilitates the 
acquisition or attempted acquisition by 
the Denied Person of the ownership, 
possession, or control of any item 
subject to the Regulations that has been 
or will be exported from the United 
States, including financing or other 
support activities related to a 
transaction whereby the Denied Person 
acquires or attempts to acquire such 
ownership, possession or control; 

C. Take any action to acquire from or 
to facilitate the acquisition or attempted 
acquisition from the Denied Person of 
any item subject to the Regulations that 
has been exported from the United 
States; 

D. Obtain from the Denied Person in 
the United States any item subject to the 
Regulations with knowledge or reason 
to know that the item will be, or is 
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1 The Regulations are currently codified in the 
Code of Federal Regulations at 15 CFR parts 730– 
774 (2009). The violations occurred in 2004 and 
2005. The Regulations governing the violation at 

issue are found in the 2004 and 2005 versions of 
the Code of Federal Regulations (15 CFR parts 730– 
774 (2004–2005)). The 2009 Regulations establish 
the procedures that apply to this matter. 

2 50 U.S.C. app. §§ 2401–2420 (2000). Since 
August 21, 2001, the Act has been in lapse and the 
President, through Executive Order 13222 of August 
17, 2001 (3 CFR 2001 Comp. p. 783 (2002)), which 
has been extended by successive Presidential 
Notices, the most recent being that of August 13, 
2009 (74 FR 41325 (Aug. 14, 2009)) has continued 
the Regulations in effect under the International 
Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701, 
et seq.) (‘‘IEEPA’’). 

3 EAR99 is a designation for items subject to the 
Regulations but not listed on the Commerce Control 
List. 15 CFR 734.3(c). 

4 31 CFR part 560. 

intended to be, exported from the 
United States; or 

E. Engage in any transaction to service 
any item subject to the Regulations that 
has been or will be exported from the 
United States and which is owned, 
possessed or controlled by the Denied 
Person, or service any item, of whatever 
origin, that is owned, possessed or 
controlled by the Denied Person if such 
service involves the use of any item 
subject to the Regulations that has been 
or will be exported from the United 
States. For purposes of this paragraph, 
servicing means installation, 
maintenance, repair, modification or 
testing. 

Fourth, that, after notice and 
opportunity for comment as provided in 
section 766.23 of the Regulations, any 
person, firm, corporation, or business 
organization related to Aqua-Loop by 
affiliation, ownership, control, or 
position of responsibility in the conduct 
of trade or related services may also be 
made subject to the provisions of this 
Order. 

Fifth, that the Charging Letter, the 
Settlement Agreement, and this Order 
shall be made available to the public. 

Sixth, that this Order shall be served 
on the Denied Person and on BIS, and 
shall be published in the Federal 
Register. 

This Order, which constitutes the 
final agency action in this matter, is 
effective immediately. 

Issued this 25th day of March, 2010. 
David W. Mills, 
Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Export 
Enforcement. 
[FR Doc. 2010–7439 Filed 4–1–10; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 3510–DT–P 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

Bureau of Industry and Security 

[09–BIS–005] 

Action Affecting Export Privileges; 
Bob Rahimzadeh 

In the Matter of: Bob Rahimzadeh, 116 
Hopper Lane, Folsom, CA 95630, 
Respondent; Order Relating to Bob 
Rahimzadeh. 

The Bureau of Industry and Security, 
U.S. Department of Commerce (‘‘BIS’’), 
initiated this administrative proceeding 
against Bob Rahimzadeh 
(‘‘Rahimzadeh’’) pursuant to Section 
766.3 of the Export Administration 
Regulations (the ‘‘Regulations’’) 1, and 

Section 13(c) of the Export 
Administration Act of 1979, as amended 
(the ‘‘Act’’) 2, through the issuance and 
filing of a charging letter as to 
Rahimzadeh that alleges that 
Rahimzadeh has committed four 
violations of the Regulations (‘‘Charging 
Letter’’). Specifically, these charges are: 

Charge 1 15 CFR 764.2(b)—Causing, 
Aiding or Abetting 

Between on or about July 26, 2004, 
and on or about September 28, 2004, 
Rahimzadeh caused, aided or abetted 
the doing of an act prohibited by the 
Regulations by facilitating or 
coordinating the export of 
approximately 174 rolls of hog hair filter 
media, part number HH60130 and 
valued at approximately $11,687.76, 
items which are subject to the 
Regulations and designated as EAR99 
items,3 through the United Arab 
Emirates (‘‘U.A.E.’’) to Iran without the 
required U.S. Government 
authorization. Pursuant to Section 
560.204 of the Iranian Transactions 
Regulations (‘‘ITR’’) 4 maintained by the 
U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Office 
of Foreign Assets Control (‘‘OFAC’’), an 
export to a third country intended for 
transshipment to Iran is a transaction 
that requires OFAC authorization. 
Pursuant to Section 746.7 of the 
Regulations, no person may engage in 
the exportation of an item subject to 
both the Regulations and the ITR 
without authorization from OFAC. No 
OFAC authorization was sought or 
obtained for the transaction described 
herein. Rahimzadeh took this action 
after having been asked by Parto 
Abgardan Cooling Towers Co. (‘‘Parto 
Abgardan’’), an Iranian company, to 
arrange for the export of the items to 
Iran ‘‘via Dubai.’’ Parto Abgardan did not 
have a location in the U.A.E., and the 
address to which Rahimzadeh arranged 
for the items to be exported, ‘‘do Parto 
Abgardan,’’ was in fact subsequently 
added to the BIS Unverified List of 
entities involved in transactions in 
which BIS is unable to verify the 

existence or authenticity of the end-user 
or other party to the transaction, 
published in the Federal Register on 
October 19, 2006. 71 FR 61706 (Oct. 19, 
2006). 

In so doing, Rahimzadeh committed 
one violation of Section 764.2(b) of the 
Regulations. 

Charge 2 15 CFR 764.2(e)—Acting 
With Knowledge of a Violation 

Between on or about July 26, 2004, 
and on or about September 28, 2004, 
Rahimzadeh ordered or financed items 
to be exported from the United States 
with knowledge that a violation of the 
Regulations was occurring, was about to 
occur or was intended to occur in 
connection with the items. Specifically, 
between on or about July 26, 2004, and 
on or about September 28, 2004, 
Rahimzadeh ordered or financed 
approximately 174 rolls of hog hair filter 
media, part number HH60130 and 
valued at approximately $11,687.76, 
items which are subject to the 
Regulations and designated as EAR99, 
which Rahimzadeh knew would be 
exported to Iran via the U.A.E. without 
the required U.S. Government 
authorization. Pursuant to Section 
560.204 of the ITR, an export to a third 
country intended for transshipment to 
Iran is a transaction that requires OFAC 
authorization. Pursuant to Section 746.7 
of the Regulations, no person may 
engage in the exportation of an item 
subject to both the Regulations and the 
ITR without authorization from OFAC. 
Rahimzadeh knew that no OFAC 
authorization was sought or obtained for 
the transaction described herein. 

Rahimzadeh had knowledge that a 
violation was occurring, was about to 
occur or was intended to occur in 
connection with the items because he 
was aware of the U.S. embargo of Iran 
and had knowledge that exporting items 
through the U.A.E. to Iran was a 
violation of U.S. law. Rahimzadeh 
stated to a BIS Office of Export 
Enforcement special agent in an 
interview on or about October 14, 2005, 
that approximately three years earlier he 
had become aware of sanctions barring 
the shipment of items to Iran and that 
he understood that knowingly shipping 
items to Iran through a third country 
was illegal. Rahimzadeh referred to this 
type of activity as ‘‘diverting’’ items to 
Iran. Moreover, on or about September 
23, 1997, Rahimzadeh had issued a 
letter to Parto Abgardan stating, ‘‘I am 
trying to find a way to send the 
components that I promised to you. 
Unfortunately after many unsuccessful 
attempts, I came to a conclusion that the 
only way to open this channel is what 
you were thinking, and if I understood 

VerDate Nov<24>2008 16:40 Apr 01, 2010 Jkt 220001 PO 00000 Frm 00017 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 4703 E:\FR\FM\02APN1.SGM 02APN1m
st

oc
ks

til
l o

n 
D

S
K

H
9S

0Y
B

1P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 N
O

T
IC

E
S


		Superintendent of Documents
	2012-06-23T22:21:50-0400
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




